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Industry Questions :

1. Define what “commercial item” and “commercial contract” mean.

The definition for commercial items can be found in the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR), Part 2.101  (see http://www.arnet.gov/far/loadmainre.html 2.1 Definitions)

2. How is past performance rated or scored? Is it tied to ABVS?

As described in Part M of the Request for Proposal (RFP), award will be made to the responsible offeror(s) whose offer provides the best value at the lowest overall price, considering technical evaluation of past performance and price equally.  Evaluation will be conducted based on technical proposal provided by the prospective contractor.  Other tools such as Automated Best Value Model (ABVM) may also be used to evaluate past performance.

3. How is PLT computed for this program? Is this different from the method of computation under ABVS?

PLT = Production Lead-time.  PLT is the date of award of the delivery order until the date material is received at the depot.  Proposed PLT should include sufficient time for shipment and receipt of material.

4. What format are you looking for in the technical proposal?

No specific format is required.  Prospective contractor should comply with section L of the RFP - “Instructions to Offerors” in preparing their technical proposal.  BE SURE TO PROVIDE SPECIFIC PROPOSAL INFORMATION IN APPROPRIATE VOLUME FORMAT AND DO NOT INCLUDE PRICING INFORMATION IN THE TECHICAL PORTION OF THE PROPOSAL.

5. Where do I include the Surge and Sustainment plan, since it is not an evaluation factor?

The Surge and Sustainment Plan should be a standalone document submitted separately from the business and technical proposals in its own volume. 

6. Should I describe my past performance for each NS item?  Or should I just provide performance for the marketbasket as a whole?

As described in section M of the RFP “Evaluation Factors for Award”, offerors should describe past performance in sufficient detail to demonstrate their capabilities.  

7. Where should I indicate my ISO or other quality certification? How is that evaluated?

Quality certifications should be included in your past performance technical proposal.  It will be evaluated as part of your record of past performance.

Responses to Questions 8 and 9 are combined since they both relate to Qualified Suppliers List (QSL) requirements.

8. How does alternate release point apply to QSL?

9. QSL applies to both manufacturers and dealers.

Several Federal Supply Classes (FSC’s) being solicited are designated for the QSL program.  For those items designated as QSL, offers can only be accepted from a qualified suppliers list manufacturer (QSLM) or a qualified suppliers list dealer (QSLD) offering the product of a QSLM.  Offers from other than qualified suppliers will not be considered unless no reasonable offers are provided by QSL suppliers.  For more information regarding the QSL program, please visit the QSL website http://www.dscp.dla.mil/gi/prod_services/qsl.htm.  


Alternate release procedures established by the DCMA does not impact QSL requirements.

10. How was Annual Demand Value calculated?

The Annual Demand Value (ADV) is calculated by multiplying the Annual Demand Quantity (ADQ) by the Material Acquisition Unit Cost (MAUC).  This unit price is an internally calculated unit price based on recent awards.

11. What makes an item commercial if it’s off a military-unique drawing (a NavSea drawing, for example)?

Commerciality was established based on market analysis.  The items being solicited are considered to be “of a type” commercially available, and can therefore be solicited under the terms of FAR Part 12 for commercial items.  See Question 1 for definition of commerciality.

Responses to Questions 12 and 13 are combined since they both relate to teaming arrangements.

12. What teaming arrangements are necessary when a firm cannot make all the items in a basket? 
13. Then why not just break up the baskets smaller?

Baskets were established based on similarity of manufacturing characteristics and estimated dollar value.  Extensive market research was conducted to determine if baskets could be quoted on an “all or none” basis.  Responses from industry indicate that there is sufficient manufacturing capability for vendors to provide offers for complete market baskets.  If an offeror elects to form a teaming arrangement with another offeror(s) for a single or multiple market basket(s), the teaming arrangement must establish a team lead and outline the roles and responsibilities for the team lead and each teaming partner (similar to a prime – sub relationship, except a formal agreement between the parties). The formal teaming arrangement (signed and dated by all parties) must be included within the business proposal volume within the offerors business proposal qualifications.  Additional questions or concerns may be addressed to the Contracting Officer. 

14. Can a small business be a lead in a small-big business teaming arrangement?

In accordance with FAR 52.219-14 (b)(2) on page 31 of the RFP, entitled Limitation on Subcontracting, “The concern (i.e., Small Business team lead) shall perform work for at least 50 percent of the cost of the contract, not including the cost of materials, with its own employees.”  Therefore, a small business team lead may partner with a large business as long as the small business team lead is performing at least 50 percent of the cost of the contract by its own employees.  The only caution is that the 50 percent cost requirement excludes the cost of the materials.
15. What would it take to move Phase 0 items into Phase 1?

Phase 0 items were reviewed for inclusion in the Phase 1 solicitation.  Several baskets from Phase 0 (filters, fasteners) are included in the Phase 1 solicitation. The remaining baskets do not meet the current criteria for solicitation (forecasted buy within the first two years of the contract, estimated dollar values, etc.).  Interested vendors are encouraged to recommend baskets for consideration for future phases.  However, no additional baskets from Phase 0 are expected to be resolicited in Phase 1.

16. What is the FAR citation on mandatory sourcing? Is this appealable?

Mandatory source requirements are detailed in Far Part 8.

17. Is the add/delete clause effective only after award? What if certain items really need to be deleted?

Yes, the add/delete clause is used only after award.  Items in the Phase 1 solicitation have been technically reviewed for inclusion in the current RFP.  If you determine that any item within the basket needs to be deleted, please send a detailed email to the appropriate technical representative for review.
DSCC items: Dwayne.Porter@dla.mil
DSCP items: Sharyn.Redding@dla.mil
DSCR items:  Ronald.Edmunds@dla.mil
18. Are alternative technical proposals allowed?

In order to be considered for award, you must provide an offer in accordance with the RFP as solicited.  If you choose, you may also submit an alternate proposal for the government to consider. 

19. If we have form-fit-function change to specifications due to a technology upgrade, can we bid it?

Yes, if you supply an offer on the original solicited specification as well.  Recommend any changes to specs be forwarded to the technical team identified in Question 18 above.

20. Is evaluation of the two proposal components simultaneous, or 2-step?

The business and technical proposals are independently evaluated simultaneously.

21. What happens if the government only receives only one offer on a basket?

An evaluation will be conducted to determine if the offer meets the government’s needs and provides fair and reasonable pricing.  If those two conditions are met, an award may be released for that basket.

22. How long after closing is award expected?

We request that your offer remain valid for 120 days.  Our goal is to release the first award within 60 days of the closing date, and all awards within 120 days.  

23. Are changes in PIDs allowed?

No.  You may recommend changes, but they must be technically evaluated before any changes can be incorporated.

24. How can we deal with a supplier obsoleting a component?

The add/delete clause protects the offeror from the risk of obsolete parts.  If an item on contract becomes obsolete, it should be recommended to the Contracting Officer for removal from the contract in accordance with the terms of the Add/Delete clause.

25. How are non-DSCP baskets administered? 

The basic contract will be issued and administered by DSCP.  All delivery orders will be released and administered by the defense supply center that has cognizance for that item of supply.

26. Is there any public place where prospective lead firms can research the performance records of potential teaming partners? (USMC has CPARS; does DLA have a parallel?)

DLA has no knowledge of publicly available contractor/vendor performance records other than CPARS.  CPARS is only accessible to contractors who have past performance records and not the general public.  Where a prospective team lead is proposing to team with partners who do have CPARS past performance records, the team lead is not restricted from requesting that proposed partner from furnishing any such CPARS information.  Where CPARS information does not prove to exist or be beneficial to prospective lead firms researching potential teaming partners, prospective team leads may independently survey past performance of teaming partners through reference checks and surveys, as well as other sources such as Dun & Bradstreet for financial performance.

27. Solicitation p. 37: “The government may accept any item or group of items of an offer, unless the offeror qualifies the offer by specific limitations.” This appears to conflict with the “all or none” criteria.

The text referenced above is in the Instructions to Offerors, FAR 52.212-1 (h).   The government’s intent is to award each basket on an all or none basis, as detailed in Section B Schedule of Supplies, Item 1 (p. 7).  Additional terms as provided for within this provision state “Unless otherwise provided in the Schedule, offerors may not be submitted for quantities less than those specified.”  As such, the Schedule terms and requirements on page 7 take precedence, providing for “each market basket being evaluated on an all or none basis.”  Evaluation of offers on an all or none basket basis will additionally be evaluated at the “Offer Quantities” provided for under column “L” of the pricing worksheets.

28. Solicitation Pg. 15: Has non-functioning link to DSCP clauses at http://131.82.241.3/contract/dgpa/dgpahome.htm
To obtain the text of DSCP clauses, use the following link: http://www.dscp.dla.mil/contract/policy.htm.  This brings up the complete Procurement Policy Library.  Full text of the DSCP clauses is available under the heading “Additional Local Policy - Procedures – Guidance” ( Clauses ( Local Clause Text (DGPA Part 52).

29. Solicitation pg 31: “Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer” not checked – will payment not be by EFT?

Payment will be made via EFT.  Therefore, FAR Clause 52.232-33 should be checked off.  This will be revised via Amendment 0001.

30. What factors go into historical PLT computation?  Are previous amendments extending delivery date included?

Historical PLT is a weighted average of lead-times as experienced on the most recent contract(s).  It is calculated from the date of contract award until the date material is received at the depot.  Therefore, delivery extensions should be included in the historical PLT.

31. How soon can we expect follow-on phases to be released?

Release of additional phases is unknown at this time.  We anticipate releasing a new phase every 3-6 months.

32. Is there a deadline on nominating a better pricing index?

Amendment 0001 will address the issue of pricing escalation factor.  The provision for price escalation will be deleted from the solicitation, and replaced with a price redetermination clause.  Please review Amendment 0001 for  complete details.

33. Are you doing progress payments on larger value items?

A provision for progress payments is not included in this solicitation.

34. Once awarded, what guarantee is there that orders go to the contract holder?

The DLA supply centers utilize an automated delivery order processing system for long-term contracts (LTCs).  As requirements are released for items under contract, an automated order should be released via EDI and posted to the Procurement Gateway.  

35. Where does BSM fit into this?

Business Systems Modernization (BSM) is a DLA initiative to implement COTS Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) and Advanced Planning and Scheduling (APS) software.  The approach is to cover the entire DLA inventory in phases.  DLA expects the system to be fully operational within 3 years. These NSNs will have a different contract number at time of award.  This should have no impact on the vendor's response to this solicitation.

Responses to Questions 36 and 37 are combined since they both relate to small business acquisition policy.

36. This is a HUB Zone preference solicitation.  Are you contemplating other preferences in follow-on phases?

37. Are there intentions of combining 8A/HUB zone categories in future solicitations?

Solicitation preferences are determined by FAR guidance.  At this time, HUB Zone is the only preference factor that applies.  Other preferences will be determined for future phases based on FAR guidance at that time.

38. Will this program continue for follow-on phases?

At this time, we expect to release additional phases.  However, that is subject to change based on management discretion.

39. What is posted: the winning price, or all offered prices?

Upon contract award(s), formal unsuccessful offeror notices are sent to the unsuccessful offerors. Debriefs are available if requested within 5 business days of notice.  Other procurement information can be requested via the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).

40. How are Value Engineering changes handled?

Value Engineering changes would be handled on a case-by-case basis.

General Statements, Notices & Reminders:

1. Notify the government immediately on any technical data discrepancies.

2. All “days” in various spreadsheet columns are calendar days.

3. Quantity price breaks will not be considered in the evaluation.

Government Questions to Industry:

1. Would there be interest in Mil-Spec plus dash number oriented baskets in the next phase? Yes.

2. Do you use anything other than NAICS to categorize your processes? No
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